10.

11.

OXFORD MAYOR AND COUNCIL
REGULAR SESSION
December 8, 2025 - 7:00 P.M.
CITY HALL - 110 W. CLARK ST. OXFORD, GA 30054
AGENDA

Call to Order — Mayor David S. Eady

Motion to accept the Agenda for the December 8, 2025 Mayor and Council Regular Meeting.

Consent Agenda:
a. *Minutes of the City Council Regular Session on November 10, 2025
b. *Minutes of the City Council Public Hearing on November 17, 2025
c. *Minutes of the City Council Work Session on November 17, 2025

Mayor’s Report:
Citizen Concerns:

*Vote for the Approval of the Future Development Plan for the Oxford College Campus: Section
40-350. (2) Review. The Planning Commission has reviewed the future development plan and
recommends the plan as submitted, by a vote of 3 (yes), 0 (no) and 1 (abstention). The City Council
may accept the plan as submitted or require amendments, special stipulations, or require further revision
of the plan. Mr. James Johnson (Emory University) will be present to review the Oxford College
Future Development Plan and answer any questions.

*Vote for the Variance Application #2025-01: This is a variance request to exceed the 3-story/35’
building height restriction with a 4-story 68’8 dorm (see City Code Sec. 40-347).

*Vote for the Variance Application #2025-02: This is a variance request to reduce the stream buffer
from 100° to 25” for the same dorm construction (see especially, City Code Sec. 14-134 (15)).

*Award the Bid for the Micro-Detection of Rain-Derived Inflow and Infiltration for the Turkey
Creek Basin: As noted in the recommendation letter from Carter & Sloope, Duke Root Control, Inc.
was the sole bidder for this job. Their bid has been found to be acceptable and is recommended for
acceptance. The price of $65,024 is based on a $1.00/liner foot of sewer line within our system within
the Turkey Creek Basin. While Carter and Sloope recommend an overall budget of $85,000, we
currently have a total of $80,000 available and believe this will be adequate. Please note, this work is
only for the identification of problem areas, there would be further expenses to correct any inflow and
infiltration issues.

*Vote for a Resolution to Amend the Service Delivery Strategy: This Resolution is meant to revise
the Newton County Service Delivery Strategy Plan to reflect that municipalities within Newton County
provide parks and recreation services within their municipal boundaries, in addition to those parks and
recreation services provided by Newton County, both within the incorporated boundaries and the
unincorporated areas of Newton County.

*Renewal of Oxford’s Speed Detection Permit with the Georgia Department of Safety: The current
permit is set to expire 12/31/25. This is a standard, periodic renewal requiring: 1) Our Police
Department’s FCC radio station license, 2) each officer’s operator permits for speed detection, and 3)
the calibration of each detection device.



12. *Invoices: Council will review the city’s recently paid invoices over $1,000.

13. Executive Session: An Executive Session could potentially be held for Land Acquisition/Disposition,
Addressing Pending or Potential Litigation, and/or Personnel.

14. Adjourn
* Attachments
Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations to allow them to observe and/or participate in

this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, are requested to contact City
Hall at 770-786-7004 so as to allow the City to make reasonable accommodations for your concerns.



BIRTHPLACE O

DRAFT MINUTES OF THE OXFORD AND MAYOR COUNCIL MEETING
REGULAR MEETING
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 10, 2025

CITY HALL
ELECTED OFFICIALS PRESENT: APPOINTED/STAFF PRESENT:
David Eady- Mayor Bill Andrew- City Manager
Laura McCanless-Councilmember Stacey Mullen- Interim City Clerk
George Holt- Councilmember Mark Anglin- Police Chief
Mike Ready- Councilmember David Strickland- City Attorney

Jeff Wearing- Councilmember
Jim Windham- Councilmember
Erik Oliver- Councilmember

OTHERS PRESENT: Nick Cole, Jane Fadeley, Mr. Wendell D. McNeal, Cody Gilkeson
(representative of Netflix)

1. The meeting was called to order by the Honorable Davd Eady, Mayor

2. Jeff Wearing made a motion to accept the agenda for the November 10, 2025
Mayor and Council Regular Meeting. Erik Oliver seconded the motion. The
motion was approved unanimously (7/0). (Attachment A)

3. Laura McCanless made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda with edits to
correct that the motion for the Planning Commission membership did not carry
on the first vote, in addition, adding George Holt as the fourth nay. Mike Ready
seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously (7/0).
(Attachment B)




4. Mayor’s Report:
Mayor Eady expressed his appreciation to the staff for their initiative in partnering
with the local food bank Open Heart Oxford, managed by Mt. Zion Baptist Church.
Pastor Williams coordinates with the local churches in town, and city hall is serving
as a drop-off point for food and other necessities to support individuals in the
community who are in need of resources.

In addition, Mayor Eady recognized that Veteran’s Day is the following day and
emphasized the importance of recognizing veterans who are currently serving and
have served. Appreciation was extended to all veterans.

5. Citizen Concerns
Jane Fadeley of 401Queen Ann Street expressed her concerns regarding a fallen tree
located on West Bonnell and Queen Ann Street. She stated that neighbors have
attempted to cut and remove the tree manually without success and was inquiring if
the city would be able to offer any assistance with the removal and cleanup efforts.

Mayor Eady expressed appreciation for the concern and apologized that the city
could not intervene due to liabilities, as the tree is located outside of the city right-
of-way. Ms. Fadeley was advised that she may want to contact Pastor Wilhite at
Oxford Baptist Church, who may have volunteers that are able to assist.

Laura McCanless also noted that she received citizen concerns regarding the
following matters:

e Removal of stilt grass collected by ReForest Atlanta and placed in bags on
the trail for later pickup by city staff.

e Drivers failing to stop at the four-way stop at Fletcher and Asbury, causing
concern for the safety of children who ride their bicycles through that
intersection.

e Requests to update or expedite the current review of the city ordinance to
allow for use of personal transportation vehicles (PTV) within the city due to
the volume of requests from residents, particularly those who rely on such
transportation for mobility purposes, including those with medically induced
disabilities. These matters were noted for follow-up.




6. Mr. Wendell D. McNeal would like to introduce himself to the City Council as he
is a candidate for the State House of Representatives, District 114.
Mr. Wendell McNeal introduced himself to the council as a candidate for the
Georgia House of Representatives for the district that includes the city, currently
represented by Tim Fleming. He explained that he is a resident of Madison and grew
up in Wharton, Georgia, a town similar in size to Oxford. Mr. McNeal noted that he
previously operated a local business for approximately 26 years before selling it, and
he continues to maintain real estate and community ties in the area. He also serves
on the Boards of the Northeastern Boys and Girls Club and the Northeastern
Regional Commission.

Emphasizing his business background and conservative values, Mr. McNeal
highlighted his commitment to addressing community issues. He shared that,
through conversations with residents, the leading concern he has heard was
property taxes. He stated that he is exploring ways to provide tax relief without
negatively impacting municipal operations. He thanked the council for their time.

7. Authorization for Mayor to sign location agreement with Netflix Productions for
use of the Old Church.
Cody Gilkeson, the Location Manager for the Netflix series called “All the Sinners
Bleed”, presented a proposal to film at the Old Church, noting that only minimal,
temporary alterations, such as removable signage, would be made. The production
team is requesting short-term closures of nearby streets, staffed by off-duty
officers, with continuous emergency access and resident placards for immediate
entry. The team will coordinate closely with residents through advance meetings
and a group text. Pedestrian traffic on the adjacent trail will be briefly paused only
when necessary. The production team will work with Public Works to temporarily
turn off nearby streetlights and install production lighting, which will be removed the
following Monday. The proposed schedule for use of the Old Church will be from
December 02- December 08, 2025.

A motion was made by Erik Oliver to approve the location agreement with
Netflix Productions for use of the Old Church. Mike Ready seconded the
motion. -The motion was approved unanimously (7/0). (Attachment C)



8.

10.

Award Bid for the 208 Emory Street Stormwater Project
A motion was made by Erik Oliver to accept the lowest bid from Site

Engineering, Inc at $49,275.00 for the stormwater project improvements. Laura
McCanless seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously (7/0).

(Attachment D)

Approve the Change Order for Phase Il of the Emory Street Sidewalk Project

A motion was made by Erik Oliver to accept the change order for phase |l of the
Emory Street Sidewalk project. Jeff Wearing seconded the motion. The motion
was approved unanimously (7/0). (AttachmentE)

Discussion:

Laura McCanless noted that some of the drawings still show thermal plastic
sidewalks, indicating older or conventional painted crossings. She questioned
whether they were up to date.

Bill Andrew confirmed the drawings are the GDOT approved set but do not yet reflect
the newer policy changes. He further noted that although the pressed/decolored
concrete had been considered, the recommendation is to use actual brick, which
has a better look, lasts longer and does not fade.

Mayor Eady noted that the current project goes only to the post office (George
Street), not to Pierce Street. He also mentioned that the lighting included in this
project stops at the north side of Whatcoat Street- lighting for the east side of the
street is not included. Additional lighting could be considered in future capital
improvement planning (FY27 and beyond).

The motion was approved unanimously (7/0). (Attachment F)

Resolution to Amend the FY 2026 Capital Improvement Plan Budget
A motion was made by Mike Ready to amend the resolution for the FY 2026

Capital improvement plan budget. Erik Oliver seconded the motion. The motion
was approved unanimously (7/0). (Attachment G)




1.

A motion was made by Laura McCanless to approve of ordering the large bucket
truck budgeted for FY 2027 at a cost of 247,500. Jim Windham seconded the
motion. The motion was approved unanimously (7/0). (Attachment H)

Resolution to Authorize Electric Cities of Georgia (ECG) Voting Delegates:

A motion was made by Laura McCanless to approve to change the authorized
delegates, appointing the Mayor and City Manager to be the voting delegates
and carry with the position. Jim Windham seconded the motion. The motion
was approved unanimously (7/0). (Attachment I)

12. Invoices

13.

The council reviewed the invoices for over $1,000 for the month of October.
Laura McCanless suggested that the city put out an RFP for a new IT provider, in
consideration of the expensive monthly rate, reaching over $4,000 a month with the
current provider, VC3.

George Holt inquired about the Newton County Board of Commissioners’ charges
for the Insurance Premium Tax for FY26. He was seeking an explanation of the
charges, as the invoice was unclear of what the city was billed for. Stacey Mullen

-advised that she would investigate the matter further and email the council with her

findings.

Executive Session
A motion was made by Jim Windham to enter into executive session at 7:48 PM
to discuss land acquisition/disposition, addressing pending or potential

litigation, and or personnel. Jeff seconded the motion. The motion was
approved unanimously (7/0).

A motion was made by Jim Windham to exit executive session at 8:38 PM.
George Holt seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously (7/0).

A motion was made by Jim Windham for approval to move forward with land

acquisitions. George Holt seconded the motion. The motion was approved
unanimously (7/0).




A motion was made by Laura McCanless for the approval of Mayor Eady to sign
the memorandum of agreement with the Southeast Rural Power Energy

Affordability Coalition. Mike Ready seconded the motion. The motion was
approved unanimously (7/0).

14. Adjourn
A motion was made by Mike Ready to adjourn the meeting at 8:40 PM. George
Holt seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously (7/0).

Respectfully submitted,

Stacey Mullen, Interim City Clerk




DRAFT MINUTES OF THE OXFORD MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEETING
OXFORD CITY HALL
PUBLIC HEARING
Monday, November 17, 2025- 6:00 PM

Present: David Eady, Mayor; Jim Windham, Laura McCanless, Erik Oliver, Mike Ready,
Jeff Wearing, George Holt, Councilmembers

Staff: Bill Andrew, City Manager; Stacey Mullen, Interim City Clerk; Jody Reid,
Supervisor of Utilities and Maintenance; Mark Anglin, Police Chief; David Strickland,
City Attorney

Others Present: James Johnson (Emory), Tulio Pineda (Emory), Antonio Sample (Eberly
& Associates), Mary Lubin, Kip Hart, Judy Greer, Jane Fadeley, Mike McQuaide

1. Callto Order
The public hearing was called to order by the honorable David Eady, Mayor. The
purpose of the hearing was to consider two variance applications: # 2025-01, a
request to exceed the 3-story/35’ building height restriction with a 4-story 68.8”
dorm and #2025-02, a request to reduce the stream buffer from 100’ to 25’ for the
same dorm construction.

a. Planning Commission Review
Mayor Eady announced that the Planning Commission reviewed and supported the
variance requests with a 3-0 vote (one abstention), adding two caveats:

1. Building Height- Emory must confirm with the county fire department that the
building’s height does not exceed ladder-truck reach.

2. Stormwater and Buffer- Although the stream buffer will be reduced, the new
underground water-quality system will exceed current standards and improve
stormwater management compared to existing conditions.



The Planning Commission also noted the site already has little vegetation
because it is currently a parking lot, and that trail impacts and overall visual
impact should be minimal due to the city’s unopened right-of-way.

2. Review of the Variance Application #2025-01
Jesse Johnson with Emory University spoke to council to explain the proposed
variances and began with an overview of the college’s future development plan and
an outline of upcoming projects tied to the proposed new residence hall. The city
requires Oxford College to maintain an approved future development plan before
issuing any development or building permits.

Mr. Johnson advised that the college does not anticipate major capital
improvements over the next decade aside from this housing project, which will be
built in Haygood Hall west parking area where the facilities management barn
currently stands. He further noted, once the new dormis complete, the aging Jolly
Residential Center (JRC) buildings (Stone, Bonnell, Dickey and Dowman) will be
demolished. The FM barn will be relocated behind 402 Moore Street, with minimal
renovations to that house and significant grading required for a new service yard and
access road.

In addition, several deteriorated buildings are slated for demolition due to structural
issues, including Dooley’s Tavern, whose upper floor is unsafe; it will be replaced by
a new student social space in the basement of the new dorm. Additional
demolitions include 102 Pierce Street, found to be severely termite-damaged, and
the three unsafe, unoccupiable structures at 702 Emory Street.

Mr. Johnson explained that additional planned projects include creating new parking
west of the future residence hall site and adding a parking lot near the soccer field
between Moore and Stone Streets. The college is evaluating how many spaces are
actually needed to avoid overbuilding. The new dorm will provide 368 beds, which
only replaces the beds lost with the JRC demolition and restores common spaces in
Fleming and Elizer-Murdy that had been converted into housing- so no enrollment
growth is planned.

The college also intends to pave the longstanding temporary gravel road, which has
caused stormwater and buried manhole issues. Once paved, it will serve as a




dedicated service road to route service vehicles away from Haygood and Emory
Streets.

George Holt questioned whether the long-standing gravel service road would be
paved as a part of the current project. Mr. Johnson confirmed that itis notincluded,
though they may pave a small portion. He advised that the primary reason is budget
constraints, but also the project is more complex than simple paving. The road
contains underground utilities, overhead powerlines, and would require significént’
regrading and utility relocation. He further noted that the road is important for
access- especially for move-in, move-out, emergency vehicles, and wayfinding once
they new dorm has an address, but full paving will have to be addressed in a future
project.

The new residence hall will be located in the parking lot behind the quad near
Wesley, Moore, and Emory Streets. The project replaces the 87,000 square foot JRC
with a 99,800 square foot building, designed as two four-story wings connected by
one-story structure housing the new Dooley’s Tavern.

The first variance requested is a height variance, because part of the northern wing
falls within the Institutional Campus Transitional Area, where building heights are
limited to three stories or 35 feet. The College is requesting approval for a 58’ 8”
(parapet height) and 68’ 8” stair towers, based on schematic design locations.

The project maintains the required buffer along the undeveloped George Street
right-of-way, where existing canopy gaps would be filled with new plantings to
screen views of the building.

An elevation drawing showed how the new four-story residence hall would appear
from the George Street side. As the building extends west, it steps down one story
to accommodate mechanical space, and the Dooley’s Tavern area and a stair tower
are also located on the fagade. The parapet heightis 58’ 8” above the average grade,
and its chimneys reach 823’, a height previously approved through similar variance.

. Review of Variance Application #2025-02

Mr. Johnson explained the second variance request, which concerns intrusion into
the stream buffer. Parts of the proposed fire-access road sit 18-29 feet from the
required 25-foot buffer. He also noted an additional buffer impact near Turkey



Creek, where the current parking lot detention pond already sits within the buffer.
The plan is to replace this pond with underground stormwater detention beneath
the parking area to manage runoff from both the building and the lot.

The civil engineer, Antonio Sample (Eberly & Associates), described the project’s
hydrology study, which indicates post-development stormwater flows will be equal
to or less than existing flows, meeting or exceeding ordinance requirements. The
design includes bioretention areas and green infrastructure to treat runoff before it
enters the pond stream. He noted that parts of the campus currently bypass
detention entirely; the new design aims to capture and treat more stormwater than
today.

The site was intentionally chosen because it already cleared land containing the
existing pond and yard area, minimizing new tree and vegetation impacts. Mr.
Sample emphasized that this is why the stream buffer variance is necessary.

. Questions/Public Comments

Mary Lubin of 100 Wentworth Drive asked if the public hearing was regarding the
variance only on the new residence hall, and whether that included the demolition
of the three structures across the street (702 Emory Street)?

Mr. Johnson explained that only the residential building and its variances were under
consideration.

She also asked about the construction timeline.

Mr. Johnson advised that the dorm project is one year from construction start and
two years from occupancy, at minimum. He also noted that the existing JRC
buildings would not be demolished until 2029 or later.

He further explained that the trees being removed are mostly within the parking lot
and relatively young (about 12 years old). He confirmed an extensive replanting plan
and stated the university follows a “no net loss of tree canopy” policy, meaning that
more replacement tree inches will be planted than removed.

Kip Hart of 102 Fletcher Street expressed strong skepticism about granting
variances, noting that approving one sets a precedent for all future requests. He
stated that the proposed variances in this case are extreme, pointing out that the
stream buffer reduction from 100 feet to 25 feet represents a 75% decrease, which
he viewed as environmentally significant.



He further noted that the height variance results in a building 80-85% taller than the
standard aesthetic expectations. He emphasized that when variances push
standards to such extremes, it suggests a broader issue with the zoning laws
themselves. Rather than repeatedly granting large deviations, he argued the city
should reconsider and clarify its zoning regulations.

He concluded that accepting extreme variances in both environmental and
aesthetic categories is not healthy for long-term community planning.

Mike McQuaide of 1026 Emory Street thanked Emory representatives for their
careful consideration of potential impacts on the local watershed. He noted that
city council and its volunteer committees are now giving much greater scrutiny to
environmental impacts than in the past.

He expressed concern that after recently increasing the city’s riparian buffer
requirement from 25 feet to 100 feet, the city is now being asked to reduce that
standard for the first time. While he acknowledged this inconsistency, he also said
he was encouraged by the project team’s statements that the new development will
reduce runoff compared to current conditions, and that the project will resultin a
greater tree canopy than what exists today. '

. Adjourn

Mayor David Eady adjourned the public hearing at 6:34 PM.

Respectfully submitted,

Stacey Mullen, Interim City Clerk



DRAFT MINUTES OF THE OXFORD MAYOR AND COUNCIL
WORK SESSION
NOVEMBER 17, 2025
OXFORD CITY HALL

OFFICIALS PRESENT: STAFF PRESENT:

David Eady- Mayor Bill Andrew- City Manager

Mike Ready - Councilmember Stacey Mullen- Interim City Clerk
Laura McCanless- Councilmember Mark Anglin- Police Chief

Jeff Wearing- Councilmember Jody Reid- Supervisor of Utilities &
Jim Windham- Councilmember Maintenance

Erik Oliver- Councilmember David Strickland- City Attorney

George Holt- Councilmember
OTHERS PRESENT: James Johnson (Emory), Tulio Pineda (Emory), Antonio Sample
(Eberly & Associates), Jane Fadeley, Judy Greer, Mary Lubin, Mike McQuaide, Kip Hart
1. Mayor’s Announcements:
None

2. Committee Reports:

Trees, Parks & Recreation
Mike Ready & Mike McQuaide provided the report

Sustainability Report
None

Planning Commission
None

Downtown Development Authority
Mike Ready provided the report



3. Review for the Approval of the Future Development Plan for the Oxford College
Campus (Attachment A)

Erik Oliver questioned whether Dooley’s Tavern should sit internally on that campus
rather than along an edge that could eventually border the neighborhood. He also
raised concerns regarding the long-delayed access road between Moore Street and
the new dorm. He stated firmly that this road must be completed as part of the
project, including burying the powerlines, and that this should be a joint effort
between the college and the city-not something to push off again.

Mr. Windham asked to see an alternative orientation of the proposed dorm because
the current layout appears to cut off the service road behind the parking lot. He
then focused heavily on the parking lot, confirming that the existing lot has about
263 spaces, asking how many new spaces are planned, and questioning whether
the number of cars from students and employees truly requires that much parking.
He also asked whether added parking would reduce the number of vehicles
currently seen along the nearby streets.

Mr. Windham further stated that large, paved lots create far more stormwater runoff
than buildings, and he is worried about the environmental impact of expanding
paved parking-especially if more parking is added near the athletic fields. He
encouraged the college to think creatively about parking rather than defaulting to
large, paved lots.

Mayor Eady recalled a previous planning session where the council emphasized
wanting the service road paved and realized changes in the building design may
limit the ability to route truck deliveries the way they originally intended. He
suggested re-evaluating delivery access routes to reduce commercial traffic on
residential streets and preferred that service access comes from Moore Street.

He noted that going taller is often the practical solution when trying to reduce a
building’s footprint and list other nearby campus buildings with similar mass and
height, suggesting some precedent exists. He further explained that natural
floodplain conditions north of the project are likely to prevent future residential
development there.

4. Review of Variance Application #2025-01 (Attachment B)
Laura McCanless expressed that her primary concern with the proposed building
height is public safety, not aesthetics. Historically, the city limited building heights
because the county lacked a ladder truck capable of reaching taller structures.




She further stated that although the county now has improved equipment, she
stressed that the council cannot approve the plan until there is clear confirmation
that Newton County Fire can safely and reliably serve a building of this height.

Erik Oliver raised several concerns about the proposed building height and the
broader development plan. He emphasized that because this is a variance request,
the city must apply the same standards to the college that it would to any other
future development- consistency matters, and the city cannot pick and choose.

Mr. Oliver further noted that the transitional area was originally intended to ensure
building heights step down toward residential neighborhoods, and while there are
currently no homes north of the site, that land is fully developable, meaning future
residents could be impacted. He agreed that the proposed location of the building is
logical and that a smaller footprint with additional height makes sense; however, he
asked whether the college had considered other configurations, such as rotating the
building so its narrow side faces north, to reduce future impact.

Jim Windham expressed strong concerns about using one variance to justify
another, noting that allowing the college to cite the prior science building variance
sets a precedent that developers across town could use and that granting repeated
variances weakens the city ‘s ordinance.

Jeff Wearing expressed strong opposition to the proposed building placement,
height, and to locating the student gathering space known as Dooley’s Tavern near
his property. He believes the variances being requested would be disruptive to
surrounding neighbors. He argued the building could be spread out differently or
relocated, possibly towards the soccer field area, rather than being concentrated so
close to existing residential properties. He further noted that he would like to see
alternative proposals because he does not feel the current layout is appropriate.

. Review of the Variance Application #2025-02 (Attachment C)

Mayor Eady expressed significant concern about the impact on Turkey Creek. Even
though the parking design plans to collect and filter water before discharging
southward, gravity will still send some runoff north and west. He believed current
site conditions already allow uncontrolled stormwater to enter the intermittent
creek and Turkey Creek. He recommended strengthening protections on the west
side of the parking area- possibly through a retention wall, restoration of a more
natural floodplain, or substantial vegetation, to slow water flow and reduce erosion.

Mayor Eady further stated that the variance can be justified if the city clearly
outlines mitigating circumstances, and he believes such justification exists,
providing additional steps are taken to protect Turkey Creek.



Ms. McCanless noted that the city has spent several years working to restore both
creeks bordering Oxford by removing invasive plants and replanting native
vegetation, supported by multiple grants. Because of the ongoing effort to improve
riparian health, the current proposal feels like a potential step backward.

Mayor Eady expressed to the college that the post-development overlay shows the
steep slope near the creek is man-made, created over years of pushing dirt during
parking -lot development. He argued that while the new plan handles water from
the parking lot itself, it does not fix the larger issue of the artificial slope that sends
stormwater rushing directly into the creek and contributes to the creek being deeply
cut and unhealthy.

He urged the college to go beyond the basic mitigation and actually restore the
floodplain by regrading the slope to a more natural grade and re-vegetating it with
substantial native plantings, which would create an opportunity to correct historical
impacts to Turkey Creek, not just prevent new harm.

Antonio Sample pointed out that regrading could require work inside the 25-foot
state buffer, which triggers additional regulatory approvals.

Mayor Eady explained it could be done without major disturbance and maintained
that stronger restoration is needed because leaving the artificial slope in place will
continue to accelerate runoff. Overall, he supports the variance but wants more
meaningful stormwater and ecological restoration- particularly on the west side
slope leading to Turkey Creek.

Council members raised several key concerns:

e Encroachmentinto the 100-foot buffer
The council wants a stronger, functional justification for why the building
must extend into the protected area, as aesthetic design choices alone do
not justify a variance.

e Truck circulation and road impacts
Heavy delivery trucks currently cut through residential streets that are not
built for that load. The council reiterated that the college previously agreed
to use Moore Street as a service road route. If trucks continue using
neighborhood roads, the college may be required to pay for major road
reconstruction.

e Mitigation expectations
Variances will only be supported if meaningful mitigation is included
regarding stormwater, noise, parking, and truck routing. Better mitigation
could eliminate the need for certain buffer encroachments entirely.




Public street parking issues

The city created public parking often becomes informal college parking.
Since public streets cannot be designated exclusively for Emory, the city may
remove college related signage. Therefore, the college cannot rely on these
public spaces in its official parking calculations. It was further noted that
public street parking near campus is city property, not college-owned, and
must remain publicly accessible. If the college wants to count those public
spaces as part of its official parking supply or restrict them for student use, it
would need a formal agreement with city, potentially including
compensation.

Mayor Eady advised that the college should return with revised plans and
additional mitigation measures before a vote- particularly regarding buffer
impacts, stormwater, noise, truck circulation and parking arrangements.

6. Consideration of bids for the Micro-detection of Rain-Derived Inflow
and Infiltration for the Turkey Creek Basin (Attachment D)

The city received only one bid for the Turkey Creek Basin inflow and filtration
inspection, but Carter & Sloope confirmed the bid is complete and fairly
priced. Partnering with Covington helped keep costs lower, and Covington is
planning to expand work with the same firm. The project is expected to stay
within the city’s $80,000 budget, covering inspection from the Moore Street
interconnect north through the entire basin.

The work will identify problem spots, and additional funds can be used for
deeper investigation. Repairs are not included at this stage, but future fixes
may involve relining or trenchless pipe replacement. The goalis to reduce
rainwater filtration before the county’s new Water and Sewer Authority
begins sewer metering in the next few years, which would otherwise increase
costs by charging for excess flow.

The council will move forward with a plan to vote to approve $65,024 for the
project, while keeping their current budget allocation. If future needs change
based on what the contractor finds, they can amend the budget later.

7. Consideration of a Resolution to Amend the Service Delivery Strategy
(Attachment E)

The update specifically concerns Parks and Recreation services, ensuring
the Service Delivery Strategy (SDS) accurately reflects what services the city
provides to the broader county.



8. Renewal of Oxford’s Speed Detection Permit with the Georgia

Department of Safety (Attachment F)
Chief Anglin advised that the document is an administrative renewal

completed eachyear. Becauseitis largely procedural, the council agreed
there was no need for a formal vote, just completion of the necessary

signatures to keep the permit active.

9. Other Business (Attachment G)
None

10. Work Session Meeting Review
None

11. Executive Session
Erik Oliver made a motion to go into Executive Session at

7:56 PM to potentially discuss land acquisition/disposition, pending
or litigation and/or personnel. Laura McCanless seconded the
motion was approved unanimously (7/0).

Erik Oliver made a motion to exit Executive Session at 8:55 PM. Jim

Windham seconded the motion. The motion was approved
unanimously (7/90).

12. Adjourn
Mayor Eady adjourned the meeting at 8:55 PM

Respectfully Submitted,

Stacey Mullen, Interim City Clerk



Oxford College 2025 Future Development Plan Narrative
18 September 2025

The Oxford College Future Development Plan includes information on the existing buildings,
facilities, and future capital development (on a 5-to-10-year timeframe) on the campus. The plan
includes a graphic representation of the campus based on aerial photographs, aerial and field run
surveys and 3 tables that include building name and data, parking lot name and data, and open
space name and data.

Mission and Objectives

Mission

The College provides a rigorous academic program rooted in the liberal arts and sciences,
preparing students for continued study at Emory’s Atlanta campus and for lifelong success as
ethical leaders, critical thinkers, and engaged citizens. Oxford emphasizes a close-knit, residential
learning community where students and faculty collaborate in ways that foster intellectual
curiosity, personal growth, and service to the greater good.

Objectives

o To provide outstanding undergraduate education in the liberal arts and sciences within a
supportive, residential environment.

e To prepare students for transition to Emory’s Atlanta campus and for leadership in their
professional and civic lives.

* To contribute positively to the life of the City of Oxford and surrounding neighborhoods
through responsible stewardship of land and facilities, partnerships with community
organizations, and programs open to residents.

e To sustain Oxford’s role as a cultural and economic anchor for the City of Oxford by
providing employment, educational opportunities, and shared use of resources.

Services to Residents and the City of Oxford

Oxford College contributes to the vibrancy of the city by:

e Providing employment opportunities to residents of Oxford and Newton County.

e Hosting cultural, educational, and recreational events that are open to the public.

e Maintaining partnerships with local schools, nonprofits, and civic organizations.

e Offering access to walking trails, green spaces, dining, bookstore, and select additional
facilities on campus that enhance quality of life for the broader community.

e Supporting the City’s economic vitality through purchasing, local engagement, and
shared infrastructure planning.

Population (Current and Projected)




e Students: Approximately 985 undergraduate students are enrolled each academic year.
Over the next ten years, Oxford College projects stable enrollment with slight growth in
the range of 1,000-1,100 students annually, consistent with the College’s commitment
to a small, residential learning environment.

e Employees: Oxford College currently employs approximately 400 faculty and staff.
Employment levels are projected to remain stable over the next decade, with slight
increases possible depending on academic and operational needs.

e Visitors/Patrons: Each year, Oxford welcomes alumni, families, community, and visitors
for events such as Commencement, concerts, lectures, and athletic activities.
Attendance at such events is expected to continue at current levels, supporting the
College’s mission of engagement with the wider community.

Oxford College is committed to sustaining a collaborative and positive relationship with the City of
Oxford and its residents, balancing institutional growth with preservation of community character
and shared quality of life.

Property Uses and Future Land Use

Future development and land use changes on the Oxford College campus are expected to be very
minimal with key individual building projects and primarily geared towards renovations of existing
facilities. Proposed capital development includes 2 building projects, 2 open space projects, and
the demolition of several existing structures.

#1 Proposed Student Housing Project is a 96,300 sf 4 story residential building to replace
the Jolley Residential Center. Project is in the Haygood Hall West Parking Lot in the
northwest area of the campus adjacent to Haygood Residence Hall.

#2 Proposed demolition of the existing Facilities Management Barn/Storage Building to
allow for construction of the Student Housing Project.

#5 Proposed demolition of the Jolley Residential Center.

#18 Site of Jolley Residential Center to be repurposed as a greenspace/passive recreation
area. Site will be considered for additional academic building construction in the future.
#28 Proposed demolition of the Dooley’s Den Building. Site will be incorporated into the
new greenspace created by the new Housing Project.

#29 Proposed Facilities Management Relocation is a renovation of the existing house
located at 402 Moore Street and includes the construction of a new barn/storage building to
replace the structure removed with the housing project.

#36 Proposed demolition of the three structures at 702 Emory Street.

#38 Proposed demolition of 102 Pierce Street.

#52 Proposed sand volleyball court located in the green space between Fleming Hall and
Emory Street.



Parking Information

Total number of parking spaces on the Oxford Campus is 574 spaces, located in 12 lots and on-
street parking areas. The plan proposes constructing two new parking lots to maintain the total
number of spaces after the construction of the housing project. The proposed lots are located
adjacent to the existing Haygood Hall West Parking Lot (1) and adjacent to the soccer field on the
properties located between Moore and Stone Street (k).

Open Space Information

The campus has several significant open spaces. As shown on the plan, one additional open space
will be created. The site of the Jolley Residential Center will become an open lawn space for
passive recreational uses. This site will be considered for future academic buildings when the need
arises.

Open spaces on the campus include the following.

e ACemetery

e B Hearn Forest

e CThe Quad

e D Seney Forest

e ETennis Courts

e F Athletic/Soccer Field

e G Proposed Twin Memorial

e HProposed Green Space at Former JRC Site

Traffic Management

Traffic associated with the campus includes visitors, students, employees, and service vehicles.
The college endeavors to minimize the amount of traffic that impacts city residents. Visitors to the
campus are directed to enter the campus at Pierce Street and utilize the visitor parking in the
Fleming Hall Parking Lot. Students and employees are directed to access the campus via two
streets. Moore Street is utilized to park in the 601/603 lot, the Seney lot and the Williams
Gymnasium lot. Pierce Street is used to access parking at Fleming Hall Lot, street parking near
Allen Memorial Church, and the Haygood Hall West parking lot. Service vehicles are directed to
utilize both Moore and Pierce Street to access the service yards located at the Fleming Hall, the
Dining Hall, the Student Center, FM Barn, Murdy Hall, and Library and to exit the campus towards
Emory Street/Hwy 81.



Building Name Fioors| Height
Foopmed Slutent Hewsing ___|___ 98300 A0
sgement Proposed Demmoltion | 4428 e
Haygood Hak £
Canpus Life Center 20670 Yy
JRC Proposed Dermoition
Bonnell Hel 14604
Dickey Hall 11579
Dowrnan Hall 14794
Stone Hall 13179
Tarbution Performing Asts Center 12778 "
Few Hall 2081 -0
Pierca all 20636 5
Development and Alumi Relations 1819
Fleming Hal 51745 -6
Humanties Buiiding 8408 b4
Human Resources Building 1671
Odord Information Technology ﬁ
Afhiectic Department
llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll Elizer and Murdy Halls 119235
Candier Hail 12246
Johnson Hall 8405
Propoesd Onrpus Grosn 72500 | NA | NA
Senoy Fal_ 20163 4 [sr
Hophins Hall 4073 1 144
Willams Gymnasium 34007 2 350"
‘Proposed Twin Memorisis Locaion 41600 NA | NA
<. o {= /) . Old Wiliams Gyrmasium 18699 9.3
x - 7/ r 2762 T
SN AN e o A 6 — o Zogo7
»’4‘ O F J X : ) Pl Garnrna Fall w2
) = AW 0 ScienceBuilding | 50963
e Dooley’s Tavem Proposed Demoltion _ | 8100
éw‘ﬁ 5000
__Diiog Hall_ 20800
Organio Ferm Bam £
—_Orpenio Faln Fouss _ 2120,
502 Emory Street =
504 Emory Street 2600
602 Emory Street 2700 .
702 Emory Street Proposed Demoéition 2010 r
704 Emory Street. 2380
102 Plerce Proposed Demmoiition 3300
Allen Memorial Church 18400 €
807 Whaicoat Street 2320
07 George Street 2000
207 Clack Street 2400
415 Dowman Street 3000
404 Dowwnan Street 1660
408 Dowwman Street. 2200
408 Dowman Street 1860
410 Dowman Street 1675
412 Dowrnan Street. 1770
414 Dowmand Street 1440
418 Dowman Street 1810 "
808 Wesiey Streel 1610 | 120 |
Proposed Vobeyball Court 3350 NA | NA
Plan L egend

@ Building Number
(A} Open Space Areas
& Parking Areas

||||||||| —  Oxford College IC Campus Properties

amamememe= Historic Road Corridor

., ﬂ 5

=== hF——=—- B - VaniiZi o @R Proposed Road Parking Area

- : ‘ [ Pedestrian Only Area Closed To Traffic
MWM.NMWM Transitional Buffer Area

[ Existing Oxford College Building
[l Proposed Oxford College Building

l Proposed Oxford College Building Demolition

~—3 Visitor Circulation Path
—=)  Service Circulation Path
4 Existing Street Light
M Wayfinding Signage
300" IC Zoning Boundary

I

4 0 100 200 400

-

North  Scale: 1" = 200-0"

W e 2
Emory University
Oxford OO__QQQ Campus Services
Campus Plan Office of University Architect

Future Developement Plan 18 September 2025



PART Il - CODE OF ORDINANCES
Chapter 40 - ZONING
ARTICLE Il. - ZONING DISTRICTS
DIVISION 11. INSTITUTIONAL CAMPUS DISTRICT (IC)

DIVISION 11. INSTITUTIONAL CAMPUS DISTRICT (IC)

Sec. 40-345. Purpose and intent.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The Institutional Campus (IC) District provides opportunity for large public or private, nonprofit institutional
uses, including college/university campuses, primary and secondary schools, medical facility complexes,
recreational complexes, and similar campus-oriented institutions, to develop and function as holistic campus
areas with unique needs and characteristics.

The IC district shall apply to public and private institutional uses in the following circumstances:

(1) Total land area under the ownership, management, or control of a single legal entity and its ancillaries
is equal to or greater than five acres, and individual parcels are contiguous, or proximate (when
bisected by public streets or thoroughfares).

(2)  Multiple principal buildings are located on a single parcel, or on adjacent or proximate parcels, and
support a common institutional purpose (i.e., education or recreation).

(3) Total population of the legal entity's employees, students, members, or patrons is equal to or greater
than 500. The Planning Commission may recommend that the City Council apply this district in other
circumstances as deemed necessary and appropriate.

The primary intent of this division is to enable the City to plan for significant development anticipated within
the IC District, and, in cooperation and coordination with the institutions within the IC district, ensure
infrastructure, utilities, land use, transportation and public safety issues (and other issues that may arise) are
adequately addressed. Given the holistic nature and significant scale of institutions within the IC district,
development proposals and land uses must be considered in light of the cumulative effect on public facilities,
infrastructure and services as well as public health, safety and welfare. Therefore, institutions within the IC
district are required to create and maintain a future development plan consistent with the City
comprehensive plan.

The future development plan is programmatic in nature, presenting anticipated needs for development or
use of buildings and land within the district, as a holistic campus environment, over a ten year planning
horizon. The future development plan provides input necessary for the City to maintain its comprehensive
plan in accordance with state minimum standards and procedures.

The future development plan shall identify options for arrangements of buildings and spaces, and their
respective uses, and may be updated and resubmitted at any time, to provide flexibility in its execution and
to account for uncertainty within the planning horizon. The future development plan shall be updated, if
necessary, when applications for development permits for new projects are submitted, and a development
permit shall not be issued if the future development plan has not been reviewed and accepted by the City
Council.

(Code 1997, § 40-410-1; Ord. of 2-6-2012, § 1(40-410-1))

Sec. 40-346. Permitted and conditional uses.

(a)

The principal use within the IC district shall be reserved for public or private nonprofit institutions, including,
but not limited to: colleges, universities, primary and secondary schools, technical schools, medical facility

Oxford, Georgia, Code of Ordinances Created: 2025-09-24 10:49:13 [EST]
(Supp. No. 9)

Page 1 of 4

0obe



SN

(b)

complexes, multi-service centers, and similar campus-oriented institutions, as well as uses supporting and
ancillary to those institutions.

Permitted and conditional uses shall be as provided in table 4.4, permitted and conditional uses for
nonresidential zoning districts. Additionally, each IC district shall have a transitional area within which uses
are limited to minimize adverse impact on neighboring residential areas.

(Code 1997, § 40-410-2; Ord. of 2-6-2012, § 1(40-410-2))

Sec. 40-347. Dimensional requirements.

(a)

(b)

Dimensional requirements shall be as delineated on the future development plan or supporting
documentation as required by this section.

Within the district, a transitional area (TA) shall be established as the land area within 200 feet of the district

boundary wherever the district is adjacent or, when bisected by a public street or thoroughfare, proximate to
a residential district. The front, side, and rear set back requirement for construction within the TA shall be 30
feet, at a minimum, and the building height within the TA shall not exceed 35 feet.

(Code 1997, § 40-410-3; Ord. of 2-6-2012, § 1(40-410-3))

Sec. 40-348. Design principles and guidelines.

Design criteria to be applied in this zoning district shall be as provided in table 4.6, design criteria for

nonresidential zoning districts.

(Code 1997, § 40-410-4; Ord. of 2-6-2012, § 1(40-410-4))

Sec. 40-349. Future development plan requirements.

The following elements shall be provided in the future development plan for all new or existing institutions

seeking development under the Institutional Campus (IC) district:

(1) Mission and objectives. The institution shall provide a statement of its organizational mission and
objectives, including any services to be provided to residents of adjacent neighborhoods or to the City.
The statement shall include the institution's existing and projected population (over a ten-year
planning horizon), including employees, students, or patrons.

(2)  Property and uses. The institution shall provide an inventory of existing property and uses, including:

a.  Aerial map, based on the most up-to-date aerial photographs available from the Newton County
Geographic Information System (GIS) Center or the office of the county tax assessor, showing the
district boundary and all land, buildings and other structures within the IC district as of the date
of submission of the future development plan. The map also shall delineate the TA and include
other land area and infrastructure within 300 feet of the district.

b.  Narrative keyed to the aerial map with description of footprints and uses of existing land parcels,
buildings, structures, roads, sidewalks, parking areas, recreational facilities, and other significant
site developments.

c Floor area (in square feet), building height (in stories and feet), and current occupant capacities
(i.e., number of persons allowed by fire code) of each building, as well as location, land area, and
capacity of parking facilities.

Created: 2025-09-24 10:49:12 [EST]

(Supp. No. 9)

Page 2 of 4



3)

(4)

(5)

Anticipated institution needs. The institution shall provide a statement of anticipated needs with
respect to future development and land use within the district, including projections over a ten-year
time horizon for the following:

a. Number of employees, students, members, or patrons;

b.  Facility needs in assignable square feet (by facility type);

c.  Acreage of athletic or recreational facilities;

d.  Number of parking spaces;

e.  Electricity, water, sewerage capacity, or other utility demand; and

£ Vehicular and pedestrian circulation along city streets and public spaces.

Future land use. The institution shall include in the future development plan anticipated future land
uses, with an accompanying map drawn to scale, illustrating land use changes and circulation (vehicular
and pedestrian) over the ten-year planning horizon. The future land use plan and accompanying map
specifically shall illustrate:

a. Existing and proposed land use, including academic, housing, recreation, ancillary (e.g., dining,
maintenance, etc.) and mixed-use, as well as the anticipated location (or alternate locations), size
(in square feet) and capacity (in population served) of future facilities;

b.  Existing and proposed conservation areas and open spaces;
o Existing and proposed vehicular circulation patterns, including deliveries;
d.  Existing and proposed parking facilities with their capacities.

Traffic management. The institution shall demonstrate how it will manage or otherwise regulate
campus-related vehicular and pedestrian circulation, as well as parking facilities, to mitigate impact on
adjacent and proximate residential neighborhoods.

(Code 1997, § 40-410-5; Ord. of 2-6-2012, § 1(40-410-5); Ord. of 4-3-2017, § 1)

Sec. 40-350. Institutional campus future development plan procedures.

This section sets out the required review and acceptance procedures for the institutional campus future
development plan.

(1)

(2)

3)

(4)

Application. The institution shall prepare and submit the future development plan to the Planning
Commission for review. (If the institution's existing master plan meets all of the requirements in this
chapter for a future development plan, such master plan may be submitted as the future development
plan.)

Review. The Planning Commission shall review the future development plan and make a
recommendation to the City Council as to whether to accept the plan as submitted, to accept the plan
with amendments or special stipulations, or to require further revision to the plan.

Planning horizon and update requirements. The future development plan shall cover a ten-year time
horizon, and it shall be updated every years and submitted for review by the Planning Commission at
its January meeting. Every five years the full plan shall be submitted for review by the Planning
Commission and acceptance by the City Council.

Amendment procedures. An institution with an accepted future development plan may submit an
amendment to the plan at any time. Proposed amendments shall be reviewed by the Planning
Commission for acceptance in accordance with the review process outlined in this section.

Created: 2025-89-24 10:49:12 [EST]

(Supp. No. 9)

Page 3 of 4



(Code 1997, § 40-410-6; Ord. of 2-6-2012, § 1(40-410-6); Ord. of 4-3-2017(1), § 1; Ord. of 4-3-2017, § 1)

Sec. 40-351. Approval criteria.

(@) Inacc

ordance with this chapter, a site and design plan shall be required before a development permit,

building permit or other permit, as appropriate, is issued or any improvement, grading, alteration of lands, or
construction of buildings commences. acceptance of the future development plan by the City Council shall
not constitute approval of a development permit.

(b) Inacc

ordance with this chapter, a development permit shall be required for any proposed use of lands or

buildings, and before any improvement, grading or alteration of lands or buildings commences to indicate
and insure compliance with all provisions of this chapter and other applicable regulations in this Code.

() The Planning Commission shall review, and the City Council shall accept, future development plans based on

oneo

(1)

(6)

)

r more of the following policies and standards:

Whether the future development plan is complete in terms of required content and is consistent with
the adopted plans of the City, such as the city comprehensive plan.

Whether future development proposed (conceptually and concretely) in the future development plan
will adversely impact public services and infrastructure.

Whether the future development plan complies with all applicable standards of this chapter.

Whether the future development plan will result in significant adverse impacts to other property in the
vicinity of the applicant institution, or to the natural environment.

Whether the plan will have significant adverse impacts on the livability of adjacent or nearby
residential zoning districts, especially with respect to:

a. Noise, glare from lights, late-night operation, odors and litter;
b.  Privacy, traffic, parking and other safety issues; and
£ Mass, height and overall scale of buildings.

Whether any differences in appearance or scale from the surrounding area are sufficiently and
appropriately mitigated through setbacks, screening, landscaping or other design features.

Whether the future development plan has adequate mitigation measures for any other identified
potential adverse impacts.

(Code 1997, § 40-410-7; Ord. of 2-6-2012, § 1(40-410-7))

Secs. 40-352—40-375. Reserved.

(Supp. No. 9)

Created: 2025-09-24 19:49:13 [EST]

Page 4 of 4



Sec. 40-467. Design principles and guidelines.

There are no design criteria specifically applied in this zoning district in advance, since a wide variety of
development may be approved for annexation per this section. However, the City may apply any design principles
and guidelines articulated in this chapter as conditions of rezoning approval, at the time of annexation and
rezoning in Oxford.

TABLE 4.4. PERMITTED AND CONDITIONAL USES FOR NONRESIDENTIAL
ZONING DISTRICTS

P = Permitted; PA =Permitted as Accessory Use; C = Conditional Use;
X = Prohibited

Use Description INST IC IC-TA* op c TC
(additional reference)

ACCESSORY BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES AND USES
Accessory uses and structures, P P P P P P
determined by the Zoning
Administrator to be normally
incidental to one or more permitted
principal uses

Signs, as permitted by article XV, signs | P P P P P P
RESIDENTIAL USES
Dwelling, single-family detached, fee P P P P P P

simple, existing on the effective date
of the ordinance from which these
regulations are derived, including
accessory uses and structures

Caretaker's residence P P P X X X
INSTITUTIONAL USES
Adaptive reuse of a detached single- P P P P P P

family dwelling for an office
supporting an institutional use

Cemetery P P P X X X
Church, temple, synagogue, place of P P P P P X
worship

Clinic, ancillary to institutional mission | P P C X P X

(i.e., exclusively for employees,
students, or patrons)

Club or lodge, nonprofit (VA, Elks, etc.) | P P P P p X
Club, private X p P C P X
Cogeneration facility X C X X X X
College or university P P P X X X
Continuing care retirement X X X X P X
community

Continuing education P P X P P
Crisis center C P C C P X

Created: 2021-07-12 10:17:26 [EST]
(Supp. No. 6)

Page 10f 8




Day care center, nonprofit or ancillary | PA PA C X P X
to institutional mission (i.e. exclusively
for employees, students, or patrons)

Dormitory (or residence hall) X P C X X X

Family day care home X X p P X

Group home or rooming house, tenor | C P C P P X

fewer persons plus caretakers

Group home or rooming house, more | C P X c c X

than ten persons

Helicopter landing pad X C X X X X

Hospital or medical facility complex C C X X P X

Institutionalized residential living and P P P P X X

care facilities, serving fewer than 18

persons

Institutionalized residential living and C P X X X X

care facilities, serving 18 persons or

more

School, private, for the arts C P C P P X

School, private, elementary, middle, C P C P P X

high

School, private, special C P C p P X

School, private, trade C P C C C X
COMMERCIAL USES

Adaptive reuse of a detached single- X X X P P P

family dwelling for an office

supporting a commercial enterprise

Adult business X X X X C X
Automated teller machine X P C X P P
Automobile sales or service X X X X C X
establishment

Bed and breakfast inn (section 40-527) | X X C P P p
Broadcasting studio P P C P P X
Business service establishment, not X P P P P P
exceeding 2,500 square feet of gross

floor area

Business service establishment, more X P C C P P
than 2,500 square feet of gross floor

area

Camp or campground X C C X C X
Clinic, commercial (i.e., for profit) X X X p P X
Contractor's establishment X X X X C X
Convenience store with or without X X X X C X
gasoline pumps

Country club X X X X C X
Crisis center X C C X C X

Day care center (for-profit) serving X X X C C X
fewer than 18 persons

Created: 2021-07-12 10:17:26 [EST]
(Supp. No. 6)

Page 2 of 8




Day care center (for-profit) serving 18 | X X X X C X
or more persons

Exterminator, pest control or X X X C P X
disinfecting service

Farmer's market X X X X P

Finance, insurance, and real estate X X X X P P

establishments, including bank, 2,500
square feet or less of gross floor area
per establishment

Finance, insurance, and real estate X X X X P P
establishments, including bank, more
than 2,500 square feet of gross floor

area per establishment

Funeral home, mortuary, or X X X C P X
mausoleum

Greenhouse or plant nursery, X X X X P X
commercial

Health spa X X X X P X
Kennel X X X X P X
Landscaping company X X X X P X
Live-work unit X X X C C P
Lodging service (hotel, motel) X X X X P C
Manufacturing, less than 5,000 square | X X X X C C

feet incidental to a permitted use
Manufacturing, 5,000 square feet to X X X X X X
less than 10,000 square feet incidental
to a permitted use

Manufacturing, less than 10,000 X X X X X X
square feet, principal use

Museum P P C P P P
Office P P C P P P
Office/warehouse X X X X C X
Open air business X X X X C X
Parking lot, off-site P P C P P P
Parking structure X P C C C X
Personal service establishment, 2,500 P X X P P P

square feet or less of gross floor area
per establishment

Personal service establishment, more X X X C P P
than 2,500 square feet of gross floor
area per establishment

Research laboratory

Restaurant without drive-through
Restaurant with drive-through

Retail trade establishment, enclosed
Retreat center

Riding stable or commercial boarding
of horses

X|OIX|X|IX]|©
X|O|O|X]|UO|©
XIO XX |X|X
X|OIXIXIXIO
O|v|lv|jO]lvw]|o
XIX|O|O|O|X

Created: 2021-07-12 10:17:26 [EST]
(Supp. No. 6)

Page 3 of 8



Salvage yard or junkyard

Service and fuel filling station

Special event facility

Taxi-cab or limousine service

Tire retreading and recapping facilities
Vehicle emission testing facility
Veterinary clinic or animal hospital
Warehouse or storage building
Wholesale trade establishment, less
than 10,000 square feet incidental to a
permitted use

Wireless telecommunication X P C X C X
equipment and wireless
telecommunication facilities

XIOIXIX|IX|X]|T|O|X
X|TIX|IX[X|X|O|lO]|X
X|IOIXIXIXIX|IO|X]|X
XIXIXIX|X|X|O|X|X
elielbAiekislielbdielie]
XIXIXIXIX|IOIXIX]|X

RECREATIONAL USES

Community garden P P P P P P
Conservation or common area P P P P P P
Indoor recreation facilities, X X X X P P
commercial

Indoor recreation facilities, p P P X X X
institutional

Outdoor recreation PA PA PA X P C
Outdoor recreation facilities, X X X X C X
commercial

Outdoor recreation facilities, C C C X X X
institutional

OTHER USES

Mixed-use buildings and mixed-use X P X X C P
developments

Public uses P p P P P P
Temporary uses and structures P P P P P P

approved by the Planning Commission

*|C-TA is not a separate zoning district. This represents the 200' foot Transitional Area (TA) between the Institutional Campus
(IC) District and all residential districts. Permitted and conditional uses in the IC-TA may vary from those within the IC.

TABLE 4.5. DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR NONRESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS
(For districts not listed, see specific zoning district section.)

Dimensional Requirement [ INsT | I [ 1c-TA [ op | c
RESIDENTIAL DENSITY AND LOT SIZE AND WIDTH REQUIREMENTS

Minimum area to rezone to this 40,000 40,000 40,000 15,000 30,000

district (square feet)

Minimum lot width, all uses (feet) 50 50 50 50 75

BUILDING AND SITE REQUIREMENTS
Maximum building coverage 50% 50% 50% 30% 40%
(percent)

Created: 2021-07-12 10:17:26 [EST]
(Supp. No. 6)

Page 4 of 8



Minimum landscaped open space 20% 20% 20% 20% 15%
(percent)
Minimum landscape strip required None None 10 10 10
along right-of-ways, except where
build to line precludes installation

(feet)
BUILDING HEIGHT REQUIREMENTS
Maximum height (feet) 45 45 35 35 35
Maximum height (number of stories) | 4 4 3 3 3
PRINCIPAL AND ACCESSORY BUILDING SETBACKS (MIN.)
Front build-to Line See build-to line map, as applicable
Front (feet) (absent applicable build- | 20 20 30 20 20
to line)
Side (feet), abutting any R-30, R-20, 30 30 30 30 40

R-15, or R-7.5 zoning district,
including a natural vegetated buffer
or fence or wall approved by
Planning Commission

Side (feet), unless more specifically 15 15 15 15 20
provided in this table
Rear (feet), abutting any R-30, R-20, | 30 30 30 30 40

R-15, or R-7.5 zoning district,
including a natural vegetated buffer
or fence or wall approved by
Planning Commission

Rear (feet), unless more specifically 30 30 30 20 30
provided in this table

TABLE 4.6. DESIGN CRITERIA FOR NONRESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS
A = applicable; N/A =not applicable

(For the TC District, see form based provisions.)

Design Criterion INST IC IC-TA oP
Compatibility. New development and A A A A A
improvements to existing properties need
to be compatible with the existing
character, including the sensitive
treatment of perimeter property lines to
mitigate impacts on abutting properties.
Historic character. In areas with identified | A A A A A
historic buildings, structures, and sites, the
proposed new development or land
activity blends with or complements the
historic character.

Alternative transportation. New A A A A A
development should accommodate and
facilitate alternatives to transportation by

(@}

Created: 2021-07-12 10:17:26 [EST]
(Supp. No. 6)

Page50f 8



automobile, including bicycle and
pedestrian facilities.

Pedestrian access. All likely pedestrian A A A A A
routes should be identified in the design
phase and provided for in the
development. These include linkages to
individual buildings, neighboring
properties (when compatible), and
existing or planned sidewalks along public
roads, as appropriate.

Original town plan. Development or A A A A N/A
subdivision is consistent with the original
plan for the City (1837 Thomas plan).
Open spaces. Small public open spaces A N/A N/A A A
(e.g., plazas, pocket parks, and squares)
are integrated into projects of sufficient
size (i.e., 2 acres or more).

Access and parking. The development A A A A A
provides for adequate access and off-
street parking arrangements.

Fences and walls. Fences and walls that A A A A A
are used shall be of the same or
compatible material, in terms of texture
and quality, as the material and color of
the principal building.

Chain link fencing. Chain link fencing is A A A A A
prohibited in front years and discouraged
in other locations but if used, it should be
vinyl coated (black color encouraged).
Operations. All manufacturing, processing, | N/A N/A A N/A A
assembly, fabrication, servicing, and repair
operations, when permitted, are carried
out within an entirely enclosed building.
Appearance/parking. The development A A A A A
layout avoids the appearance of strip
commercial development, including the
specific provision that no more than¥ of
any required parking is located between
the public street and the principal building
line.

Parking screen. Where parking areas are A A A A A
located between a public street and the
principal building, vegetation, walls,
fences, berms, or some combination is
used to screen the view from the street to
parking areas, except for approved drives
and lot entrances.

Temporary buildings. No establishment N/A N/A A A A
operates in any non-permanent structure
such as a tent, mobile unit, trailer,

Created: 2021-07-12 10:17:26 [EST]
(Supp. No. 6)

Page 6 of 8




recreational vehicle, or other temporary
building or structure.

Storage. Equipment and materials must be | A N/A A A A
stored within completely enclosed
buildings.

Loading. All loading areas and facilities are | A A A A A
located at the side or rear of a principal
building.

Waste containers. Trash enclosures A A A A A
should be constructed of sturdy, durable,
opaque materials (with trash receptacles
screened from view).

Multiple buildings — compatibility. Multi- | A A A A A
unit developments or sites with more than
one building shall utilize a consistent or at
least stylistically compatible (but not
necessarily identical) palette of scale,
forms, colors, materials, and textures.
Accessory buildings. Accessory structures | A A A A A
should be architecturally compatible with
the principal building or buildings.
Building materials. On front facades and A A A A A
other building sides visible from a public
right-of-way, exterior building materials
should not include any of the following:
smooth-faced concrete block, tilt-up
concrete panels, prefabricated steel
panels, highly reflective, shiny, or mirror-
like materials; mill-finish (non-colored)
aluminum metal windows or door frames,
exposed, unfinished walls, exposed
plywood or particle board, and
unplastered, exposed concrete masonry
blocks.

Building facades. Lengthy, featureless A A A A A
facades and building walls should be
avoided. Large, flat, blank expanses on a
facade are not allowed.

Lighting: pedestrian. Use of low, bollard- A A A A A
type fixtures, 3-4 feet in height, are
encouraged in all areas of significant
pedestrian activity during evening hours.
Lighting fixtures. All luminaries used for A A A A A
outdoor lighting should be full cutoff
luminaries which do not emit any direct
light above a horizontal plane through the
lowest direct-light-emitting part of the
luminaire.

Created: 2021-07-12 10:17:26 [EST]
(Supp. No. 6)

Page 7 of 8



(Code 1997, § 40-415-6; Ord. of 2-6-2012, § 1(40-415-6))

Created: 2021-07-12 10:17:26 [EST]
(Supp. No. 6)

Page 8 of 8




Variance Application # 2025 - 01

PLANNING AND ZONING
VARIANCE APPLICATION FOR THE CITY OF OXFORD

Note: The applicant must complete all information. Failure to complete all information will
result in the refusal of the application. The Planning Department has up to five (5) working days
to review all applications submitted for sufficiency. If the application is found insufficient, an
agenda date will not be set until the required information is submitted.

APPLICANT AND PROPERTY OWNER ADDRESS AND CONTACT INFORMATION

Applicant Property Owner (If different from applicant)
James Johnson Oxford College

301 FM Drive, Atlanta Georgia 30322 801 Emory Street Oxford, Georgia 30054

Phone: 404.210.6636 Phone: 770.784.8888

Fax: Fax:

E-Mail: Jjames.johnson@emory.edu E-Mail:

Existing Zoning District: !C Institutional Campus

Existing Use of Property: Private College - Parking lot and storage building

Proposed Use: Private College - Residence Hall

Tax Map/Parcel Number X009000000009000 Acreage: 52.30

Address of Property: 801 Emory Street Oxford, Georgia 30054

Subdivision Name and Lot Number:

DESCRIPTION OF THE REQUESTED VARIANCE

Identify the variance you are requesting. In describing the variance, you must indicate the.
specific Article, Chapter, and Section of the City' Zoning Code you are requesting to be varied.
If more than one section is proposed to be varied, a separate application must be provided for
each section varied (and separate variance application form completed):

Article Number and Title Article Il Zoning Districts

Chapter Number and Title = Chapter 40 Zoning

Section Number and Title 40.347.b Dimensional Requirements

The Code requires building height within transitional buffer to not exceed 3 stories and 35'

I petition to reduce the requirement to allow 4 story 68'8" bldg. ag shown on the attached site plan.




Variance Application # 2025 - 01

APPLICANT’S JUSTIFICATION FOR THE REQUESTED VARIANCE

Any applicant requesting consideration of a variance to any provision of the Oxford
Zoning Ordinances shall provide a written justification that one or more of the following
condition(s) exist. Indicate how the requested variance meets the criteria provided below:

(a) There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions or practical difficulties
pertaining to the particular piece of property in question because of its size,
shape or topography that are not applicable to other lands or structures in the

same district.

The property where the building is proposed to be located is the best location due to its current

developed state, minimal number of trees, and distance from adjacent neighbors. The requested

variance will allow for a more compact building while preserving as much greenspace as possible.

(b) A literal interpretation of the provisions of this ordinance would effectively
deprive the applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties of the
district in which the property is located.

Literally interpreting the ordinance limits the ability to develop the property effectively for the

institutional campus use.

(c) Granting the variance requested will not confer upon the property of the
applicant any special privileges that are denied to other properties of the district
in which the applicant’s property is located.

(d) The requested variance will be in harmony with the purpose and intent of this
Zoning Code and will not be injurious to the neighborhood or to the general

welfare.

The impact on adjacent residentially zoned properties will be minimal. There are four parcels

north of the project site owned by a single individual that contain 3 residential buildings. The

closest structure is ~280’ from the property line including the undeveloped George St. Right of

Way. The distance and existing tree canopy will effectively screen the proposed building.



Variance Application # 2025 - 01

(e) The special circumstances are not the result of the actions of the applicant.

The need for the variance is the result of the zoning conditions required by the Ic Transitional

buffer.

®) The variance requested is the minimum variance that will make possible the
proposed use of the land, building, or structure in the use district proposed.

The requested variance will allow for the construction of a condensed footprint building that

better suits the small community housing layout that is preferred in student housing and reduce

the need to expand development into undeveloped areas.

(2 The variance shall not permit a use of land, buildings or structures, which is not
permitted by right in the zoning district or overlay district involved.

The proposed use of the property is consistent with the uses allowed within the Institutional

Campus zoning requirements.

PROPERTY OWNER CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that I am the property owner or am otherwise authorized to file this application
on behalf of the property owner (submit separate signed permission) and that the above
information and all attached information are true and correct.

Signature: Date:

CHECKLIST OF APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS: In addition to this form, have you submitted:

Survey plat of the property showing all property lines with metes and bounds/ dimensions.
Legal Description (or deed of property). If deed is submitted — include a copy of any plat
book and page referred to in the deed.

Site plan of the subject property at an appropriate engineering scale showing the proposed
use and relevant information regarding the proposed variance.

Other information as may be required by the Zoning Administrator.

(<] ]

0 K



Variance Application # 2025 - 01

AUTHORIZATION OF PROPERTY OWNER

(complete this form only if the property owner is not the applicant)

[ swear that I am the owner of the property which is the subject matter of the attached
application, as shown in the records of Newton County, Georgia, and that I authorize the
person named below to act as applicant in the pursuit of a rezoning, conditional use, or
variance of this property.

Name of Applicant(s)
Address

Telephone Number

The Property Owner,

Personally appeared before me

who swears that the information contained
in this authorization is true and correct to
the best of his or her knowledge and belief.

Notary Public

Date

My Commission Expires:




Variance Application #

PLANNING & ZONING CITY OF
OXFORD
110 W. Clark Street
Oxford, GA 30054

770-786-7004

PUBLIC NOTICE REQUIREMENTS

The zoning regulations require that public notice must be given prior to all zoning hearings as follows:

1) A legal advertisement shall be published not less than 15 days and not more than 45 days prior to the
public hearing.
2) A public notice sign shall be placed in a conspicuous location on the property not less than 15 days and not

more than 45 days prior to the public hearing.

The City is required to post the sign and ensure that it remains in place during the entire zoning proceeding. The sign
must be placed on the property within the specified time and in a conspicuous location.

The purpose of the sign is to inform the public that an application has been filed. Legally, the Council cannot consider a
request until all public notice requirements have been met. If it is determined at any time during the zoning
proceeding that the sign has not been properly posted on the site, the Council must table or delay the request.
Council members and planning staff often visit the site and will look for the sign. Additionally, local citizens often
report when a sign has not been posted.

Multiple sign posting on a site may be required as determined by the City. The sign will be conspicuous and in a
location where it is clearly visible. The sign will not be obstructed in any manner, placed too far from the road, or placed
in such manner that would cause it to blend into the landscape.

The sign will remain posted during the entire proceeding. Should you find the sign missing or vandalized in any manner,
contact the city so the sign can be replaced. When the proceeding is complete and final Council action has occurred,
the sign will then be removed from the property by the City.

THIS SIGN WILL BE POSTED NO LATER THAN

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: [ TAPPROVE [ 1DENY

REASON:




Site Location - Survey Overlay

Moore Sireef

|

“’ni '(M?'_u.l W
“J/“"' % ) “}'




37vIS OL LON

YOQIHHO0D AY0Y GIAOYdINING [
(0c-4) AWAVSITONIS [

SNdINVO TYNOLLNLILSNE 00

HLYON 3INdL

G

N

g
-
P
-
Fd
s

eaJy |euollisued]

L% LINIT LHOIZH ONIdTING

— dep Buiuoz

7

(1) v34Y TNOILISNVAL .0 - /002

A




W0-0€=u

()

09 0e Sl 0
«0-0€ =l
ANVY1d 3AVHO OAV

.0 8L
S 013A37-00 B

N

O
R

-

NYY9OVIA SIHOLS ANV LHOIFH ONITING

Ol - 8F

I

__O - _N.VN
N L 73A31- 10 B

:O - _FQN
% ¢T13aAIT-N<CO
81
€T1aAIT-N€O0
W7 -8

48~ 85 |

l-ls

v 13A3T-N 10

@ __.V B _.VGN
ONIYY348 4004 - N 90

w7 - 862
S 13dvdvd 'O'L-NG90

T1VH AOOOAVH




PART Il - CODE OF ORDINANCES
Chapter 40 - ZONING
ARTICLE VIII. VARIANCES

ARTICLE VIIl. VARIANCES

Sec. 40-706. Intent.

Itis the intent of this section to permit the filing of an application for variance simultaneously with a rezoning
or conditional use application, or both, and have both the concurrent variance and companion applications
considered in the same cycle of review (i.e., "concurrent" variance application). It is also the intent to allow the
filing of applications for variance independently of any application (i.e., "stand alone" variance application).

(Code 1997, § 40-1005(1); Ord. of 2-6-2012, § 1(40-1005))

Sec. 40-707. Pre-application conference encouraged.

Applicants for variances are strongly encouraged but not required to schedule an applicant orientation
meeting with the Zoning Administrator. An applicant orientation meeting is a time where applicants can seek a
determination of the number and nature of variances required, familiarize themselves with the application
requirements and processes, and gain preliminary input from staff as to the suitability of the proposed variances.

(Code 1997, § 40-1005(2); Ord. of 2-6-2012, § 1(40-1005))

Sec. 40-708. Separate applications required when more than one section is requested to be
varied.

A separate variance application, and a separate fee, shall be required for each individual section of this
chapter for which a variance is requested or from which relief is sought.

(Code 1997, § 40-1005(3); Ord. of 2-6-2012, § 1(40-1005))

Sec. 40-709. Regulations that cannot be varied.

Variances shall not be granted to minimum lot size requirements of a given zoning district; or permit a use
which is not allowed in the zoning district in pertaining to the subject property (i.e., a "use" variance).

(Code 1997, § 40-1005(4); Ord. of 2-6-2012, § 1(40-1005))

Sec. 40-710. Application submittal process.

Applications for a variance shall require submittal of an application fee, application form, and supporting
materials specified by this section in advance by the Zoning Administrator. No application described in this section
shall be processed by the Zoning Administrator unless it is found to be complete with regard to application
materials, payment of fees, supportive materials, and any other application requirements specified by this section.
If an application described and regulated by this section does not comply with all the submission requirements of
this section, the Zoning Administrator may reject the application and refuse to process it.

(Code 1997, § 40-1005(5); Ord. of 2-6-2012, § 1(40-1005))

Oxford, Georgia, Code of Ordinances Created: 2025-09-24 10:49:17 [EST]
(Supp. No. 9)

Page 1of4



Sec. 40-711. Application requirements.

No application specified in this section shall be processed by the Zoning Administrator unless it meets the
requirements of this section as follows:

(1)
(2)

3)
(4)

(5)

(6)

(Code 1997,

Application fee as established by resolution of the City Council;

Application form furnished by the Zoning Administrator, including signed and notarized signature of
property owner;

Metes and bounds legal description of the property;

Boundary survey plat of the property; in the case where a building or structure was already
constructed and requires a setback variance, the boundary survey shall include as-built placement of
the building or structure for which the setback is requested to be varied;

Letter of intent describing the regulations to be varied (specific sections and the amount of numerical
variation sought), and including analysis of how the proposed development compares favorably with
one or more of the criteria for granting variances as established in this section;

If pertaining to future development, a site plan of the property and proposed development shall be
submitted at an appropriate engineering scale showing the proposed use and relevant information
regarding the variance request. Site plans must show information as reasonably required by the Zoning
Administrator.

§ 40-1005(6); Ord. of 2-6-2012, § 1(40-1005))

Sec. 40-712. Referral to and action by planning commission.

Upon

receipt of a completed application for variance or within a reasonable time thereafter, the Zoning

Administrator shall refer the application to the City Planning Commission. The meeting at which the Planning
Commission considers the application shall be open to the public, but the Planning Commission meeting shall not

be required

to be an advertised public hearing and the Planning Commission shall not be obligated to but may hold

a public hearing on the application.

(1)

Major Variance. The Planning Commission shall make a recommendation on the application:fér
variance within 30 days of the meeting it is first scheduled to consider the application, and
recommendation shall be submitted to the City Council. The Planning Commission may submlt any
additional report it deems appropriate. The applicant will be notified in writing by the Zoning
Administrator of the recommendation within seven working days of the decision. The recommendation
and any report shall upon publication be available upon request to the public. The recommendation of
the Planning Commission shall have an advisory effect only and shall not be binding on the City Council.

Minor Variance. The Planning Commission may grant a minor variance for the development activity on
a lot in individual cases where strict application of the development standards for the district in which
the lot is located would result in practical difficulties to, or undue hardship upon, the property owner
for reason of narrowness, shallowness, shape, topographic conditions or other conditions of the lot or
the location of the existing principal building on the lot. The authority to grant minor variances shall be
limited to variances from the following requirements:

a. In the case of Minimum Lot width at Building Line, the variance is limited to reducing the
required width by no more than ten percent of the minimum requirement for the district in
which the lot is located (e.g. if the required width is 100 feet, the width requirement for the lot
may not be reduced to less than 90 feet).

(Supp. No.9)

Created: 2025-09-24 10:49:17 [EST]

Page 2 of 4



b. In the case of Minimum Setback from Side Lot Lines, the variance is limited to reducing the
required setback by no more than 20 percent (e.g. if the required setback is ten feet, the
minimum setback may not be reduced to less than eight feet).

c. In the case of Minimum Setback from Rear Lot Lines, the variance is limited to reducing the
required setback by no more than 20 percent (e.g. if the required setback is 30 feet, the
minimum setback may not be reduced to less than 24 feet).

Pursuant to Section 105 of the Oxford Building Ordinance, all applications for development permits are
reviewed by the Planning Commission. In the event the Planning Commission determines that a minor variance
should be granted in connection with the issuance of a development permit, the Planning Commission will grant
such minor variance at the regular meeting of the Planning Commission where the application for such
development permit is reviewed. If the Planning Commission fails to grant a requested minor variance, then the
Mayor and Council may take action in lieu of the Planning Commission action.

(Code 1997, § 40-1005(7); Ord. of 2-6-2012, § 1(40-1005); Ord. of 1-9-2023(2))

Sec. 40-713. Notice of City Council public hearing.

At least 15 but not more than 45 days prior to the date of the public hearing before the City Council, the
Zoning Administrator shall cause to be published within a newspaper of general circulation within the territorial
boundaries of the City a notice of the public hearing on the application. The notice shall state the time, place, and
purpose of the public hearing. In addition, notice shall include the location of the property and the section or
sections proposed to be varied; and a sign containing the required information shall be placed in a conspicuous
location on the property not less than 15 days prior to the date of the public hearing before the City Council and
which shall remain through the date of any public hearings advertised thereon.

(Code 1997, § 40-1005(8); Ord. of 2-6-2012, § 1(40-1005))

Sec. 40-714. Criteria for variances.

One or more of the following criteria may be considered applicable or potentially applicable:

(1) There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions or practical difficulties pertaining to the particular
piece of property in question because of its size, shape or topography that are not applicable to other
lands or structures in the same district.

(2) Aliteral interpretation of the provisions of this chapter would effectively deprive the applicant of rights
commonly enjoyed by other properties of the district in which the property is located.

(3) Granting the variance requested will not confer upon the property of the applicant any special
privileges that are denied to other properties of the district in which the applicant's property is located.

(4) The requested variance will be in harmony with the purpose and intent of this chapter and will not be
injurious to the neighborhood or to the general welfare.

(5) The special circumstances are not the result of the actions of the applicant.

(6) The variance requested is the minimum variance that will make possible the proposed use of the land,
building, or structure in the zoning district in which the development is located.

(Code 1997, § 40-1005(9); Ord. of 2-6-2012, § 1(40-1005))

Created: 2025-09-24 10:49:17 [EST]

(Supp. No. 9)

Page3of4



Sec. 40-715. City Council public hearing and action.

The City Council shall hold a public hearing on the application as advertised and after review and
recommendation by the Planning Commission. In the event that the Planning Commission has not submitted its
report and the public hearing has already been advertised, the City Council may elect to proceed with the
advertised and scheduled public hearing, or it may reschedule and re-advertise the public hearing for a day after
which the Planning Commission's recommendation will be available. In rendering a decision on any such
application, the City Council shall consider all information supplied by the Zoning Administrator and the Planning
Commission, any information submitted by the applicant, any information presented at the public hearing, and the
extent to which the application meets the criteria specified for conditional uses as prescribed in this section. The
City Council may approve or disapprove the application as proposed, or it may place conditions of approval on the
application and approve the application with conditions. The applicant will be notified in writing by the Zoning
Administrator of the decision within seven working days of the decision.

(Code 1997, § 40-1005(10); Ord. of 2-6-2012, § 1(40-1005))

Sec. 40-716. Withdrawal.

Any application for variance may be withdrawn at any time at the discretion of the person or entity initiating
such a request upon notice to the Zoning Administrator, up until the public hearing by the City Council. No refund
of the required application fee or portion thereof shall be made once the application has been scheduled for public
hearing.

(Code 1997, § 40-1005(10); Ord. of 2-6-2012, § 1(40-1005))

Sec. 40-717. Limitations on the frequency of filing applications.

No application regulated by this article and affecting the same or any portion of property which was denied
by the City Council shall be accepted for filing by a property owner until 12 months shall have elapsed from the
date the application was denied by the City Council.

(Code 1997, § 40-1005(11); Ord. of 2-6-2012, § 1(40-1005))

Sec. 40-718. Judicial review.

Decisions by the City Council with regard to variances are final; provided, however, any person or persons,
jointly or severally, aggrieved by any decision of the City Council with regard to a decision on a variance application
under the terms of this section may take an appeal to or seek judicial review by the Newton County Superior
Court.

(Code 1997, § 40-1005(12); Ord. of 2-6-2012, § 1(40-1005))

Secs. 40-719—40-749. Reserved.

Created: 2025-09-24 10:49:17 [EST]
(Supp. No. 9)

Page 4 of 4



Variance Application # 2025 - 02

PLANNING AND ZONING
VARIANCE APPLICATION FOR THE CITY OF OXFORD

Note: The applicant must complete all information. Failure to complete all information will
result in the refusal of the application. The Planning Department has up to five (5) working days
to review all applications submitted for sufficiency. If the application is found insufficient, an
agenda date will not be set until the required information is submitted.

APPLICANT AND PROPERTY OWNER ADDRESS AND CONTACT INFORMATION

Applicant Property Owner (If different from applicant)
James Johnson Oxford College

301 FM Drive, Atlanta Georgia 30322 801 Emory Street Oxford, Georgia 30054

Phone: 404.210.6636 Phone: 770.784.8888

Fax: Fax:

E-Mail: iames.johnson@emory.edu E-Mail:

Existing Zoning District: C Institutional Campus

Existing Use of Property: Private College - Parking lot and storage building

Proposed Use: Private College - Residence Hall

Tax Map/Parcel Number X009000000009000 Acreage: 52.30

Address of Property: 801 Emory Street Oxford, Georgia 30054

Subdivision Name and Lot Number:

DESCRIPTION OF THE REQUESTED VARIANCE

Identify the variance you are requesting. In describing the variance, you must indicate the
specific Article, Chapter, and Section of the City' Zoning Code you are requesting to be varied.
If more than one section is proposed to be varied, a separate application must be provided for
each section varied (and separate variance application form completed):

Article Number and Title Article Ill Minimum Standards

Chapter Number and Title =~ Chapter 14 Environment

Section Number and Title 14-134. Minimum Protections

The Code requires 100" buffer along state waters

I petition to reduce the requirement to 25' and/or as shown on the attached site plan.




Variance Application # 2025 - 02

APPLICANT’S JUSTIFICATION FOR THE REQUESTED VARIANCE

Any applicant requesting consideration of a variance to any provision of the Oxford
Zoning Ordinances shall provide a written justification that one or more of the following
condition(s) exist. Indicate how the requested variance meets the criteria provided below:

(a) There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions or practical difficulties
pertaining to the particular piece of property in question because of its size,
shape or topography that are not applicable to other lands or structures in the
same district.

The property where the building is proposed to be located is the best location due to its current

developed state, minimal number of trees, and distance from adjacent neighbors. In order to

maintain an adequate buffer from adjacent residential we are requesting the stream buffer reduction

(b) A literal interpretation of the provisions of this ordinance would effectively
deprive the applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties of the
district in which the property is located.

Literally interpreting the ordinance limits the ability to develop the property effectively for the

institutional campus use. The areas proposed to be developed are currently developed with

existing stormwater infrastructure, maintenance buildings and parking lots.

(c) Granting the variance requested will not confer upon the property of the
applicant any special privileges that are denied to other properties of the district
in which the applicant’s property is located.

(d)  The requested variance will be in harmony with the purpose and intent of this
Zoning Code and will not be injurious to the neighborhood or to the general
welfare.

The proposed development will improve water quality and reduce water quantity flowing into

Turkey Creek. The project proposes improved stormwater detention and improvements to the

conveyance system inorder to reduce stormwater flows and the chance for erosion to occur

within the stream channels.




Variance Application # 2025 - 02

(e) The special circumstances are not the result of the actions of the applicant.

® The variance requested is the minimum variance that will make possible the
proposed use of the land, building, or structure in the use district proposed.

The requested variance will allow for the construction of a condensed footprint building that

minimizes the impact on undisturbed forested land.

(2) The variance shall not permit a use of land, buildings or structures, which is not
permitted by right in the zoning district or overlay district involved.

The proposed use of the property is consistent with the uses allowed within the Institutional

Campus zoning requirements and does not significantly alter or impact the existing buffer.

PROPERTY OWNER CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that I am the property owner or am otherwise authorized to file this application
on behalf of the property owner (submit separate signed permission) and that the above
information and all attached information are true and correct.

Signature: Date:

CHECKLIST OF APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS: In addition to this form, have you submitted:

Survey plat of the property showing all property lines with metes and bounds/ dimensions.
Legal Description (or deed of property). If deed is submitted — include a copy of any plat
book and page referred to in the deed.

Site plan of the subject property at an appropriate engineering scale showing the proposed
use and relevant information regarding the proposed variance.

Other information as may be required by the Zoning Administrator.

(<] ]

0 K



Variance Application # 2025 - 02

AUTHORIZATION OF PROPERTY OWNER

(complete this form only if the property owner is not the applicant)

I swear that I am the owner of the property which is the subject matter of the attached
application, as shown in the records of Newton County, Georgia, and that I authorize the
person named below to act as applicant in the pursuit of a rezoning, conditional use, or
variance of this property.

Name of Applicant(s)
Address

Teléphone Number

The Property Owner,

Personally appeared before me

who swears that the information contained
in this authorization is true and correct to
the best of his or her knowledge and belief.

Notary Public

Date

My Commission Expires:




Variance Application # 2025 - 02

PLANNING & ZONING CITY OF
OXFORD
110 W. Clark Street
Oxford, GA 30054

770-786-7004

PUBLIC NOTICE REQUIREMENTS

The zoning regulations require that public notice must be given prior to all zoning hearings as follows:

1) A legal advertisement shall be published not less than 15 days and not more than 45 days prior to the
public hearing.
2) A public notice sign shall be placed in a conspicuous location on the property not less than 15 days and not

more than 45 days prior to the public hearing.

The City is required to post the sign and ensure that it remains in place during the entire zoning proceeding. The sign
must be placed on the property within the specified time and in a conspicuous location.

The purpose of the sign is to inform the public that an application has been filed. Legally, the Council cannot consider a
request until all public notice requirements have been met. If it is determined at any time during the zoning
proceeding that the sign has not been properly posted on the site, the Council must table or delay the request.
Council members and planning staff often visit the site and will look for the sign. Additionally, local citizens often
report when a sign has not been posted.

Multiple sign posting on a site may be required as determined by the City. The sign will be conspicuous and in a
location where it is clearly visible. The sign will not be obstructed in any manner, placed too far from the road, or placed
in such manner that would cause it to blend into the landscape.

The sign will remain posted during the entire proceeding. Should you find the sign missing or vandalized in any manner,
contact the city so the sign can be replaced. When the proceeding is complete and final Council action has occurred,
the sign will then be removed from the property by the City.

THIS SIGN WILL BE POSTED NO LATER THAN

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: [ 1APPROVE [ IDENY

REASON:




O
SIIVIDOSSY 3 KTH361 SN S4¥OSONYT G202/80/01 1406 <HoNI ) H
) uzamwzmym TAD HLYON (1334N1) m
ONINNY1d ONYT >
- LY SLOVdNI d4S0d0dd o o o om0 i
3 LINATSIET MMM F10S OHdV¥O H
i i i TIVH dONAAISTd MAN - IOAXO AdOWH g
1 31InS HLNOS VO SYIMOTA 1567 o
H [
e ‘
3 " = ¥ \ /
jy | Y S A e A N A {
A ol * 1 am ﬁ:\u«/ ~ e -—
- 3 b / 7 ;\,\/ — W
= e = L / , 00~ SE
9 %l sl/ﬁ — J\ m_ /ﬂ \
= #
(IS - S .
i s gy — = I T S — =g /.e./.'l 8 = '.,r,w\.”,\:m:\vqk . /
Y - — — Yy - )
m . v ] A_H : f el ) //w:vm S ey wdn.m.r\;\n\\u
sl RS e = > =
IvH ONINNIC, - / g )
w . oY
Nzl - e
| R e A - -
¥ . ﬁﬂ. % /
Tk = , s, | A p J
; < = ® - 0 /
onie -,
. , (1) S Lz
,..mm i /.//@ ol / Lp | Ak Aoy
w] [ A . 5] \ e SzxteEu\
Moo \ SLOVdWI ¥334n8 TR A / )
== I ALID 40 4S 8'6£8'61 2 % | ; A
x " g S e el o .
== = 3 ¢ s R il o> o f
Syl 1 . % ETINNTE |
mu % 27 |
¢ . ]

BN

Sl o b
= N 1 | P g
T ;;._,m.m;«_j__l_w_%::,::.é

—

TR0 2T

¥.0-¥2 #v®3




1409 =HONI |
(1334N1)

44

ozk

J1¥OS OIHAYHO

‘ONI 'SILYIOOSSY ® AT4383 ‘1202

TR

¥20—vZ #v%3

d e

Aoy ahl

SIIVIOSSY § ATvaga HIDEEONMYOSIN] G202/80/01
P ONNEENIONA TAD HLYON
§ ONINNYId ANV
i mzémass V ddS0dOdd SA ONILSIXd AV TIdAO
g o TIVH GONAAISTI MAN - QI0IXO AJOWH
H SRITHLBL
3 N Ju/dl \ Y,
iz / i Mol
£ ] ; } T— /
Fps = e TS
m — _— ; ~ / . A,*Qa =~
e e SNz — :
& $
M ot LTS =
sogd T Smgek — = R
m _ _H . A
H 22% Mtﬁ Z ! (< < X
: S , N\
\ m - . /~/@, b % ©
il S /N \ SLOVdWI ¥344n8
gl T, ALID 40 3S 8'659'61 N
=] f 3 ms
=i ._ +
i = % s s -
/3 N :
L, , @ - ,,”
w TS SLOVARI 434408
- \\ / ) ALID 40 4S 91482 !
li____ﬂ_,, ov_____‘,__________._____‘____,Zyw/_u___uj::::u:::nmw
| ke e , L [ | I ek = b 13 L \,J-‘ ,
é””ﬁ\f&ﬁi\[\ \[If..’Wmmll — ._H!Nm.jw |...,r. = e /

e e — —

P T

- ) \\3 AL¥3d0Nd 4/N

921 30vd \u:_ %008 0330

- / a3
¢ 291 12}/ 0.11110;
, .&&u\_ .~= D 00

) Atoury




